
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

 

 
 

 
 

THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

NBHA ANNUAL BOARD MEETING 
 

Thursday, January 23, 2025 at 5:15 pm 

 

 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services such 
as interpreters for persons who are deaf or hearing impaired, readers, or large print, are requested to 
contact the NBHA’s Administrative Office at 830.625.6909 x202 at least two (2) workdays prior to the 
meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.  

  



CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 2 of 60 

 
 

 
  



CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 3 of 60 



CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 4 of 60 

AGENDA 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
 

C. CITIZENS’ COMMUNICATION  
 
This time is for citizens to address the Board on issues and items of concern. Pursuant to 
the Texas Open Meetings Act, there will be no Board discussion or action on items not on 
the agenda. Each citizen will be given five (5) minutes to speak.  

 
D. MINUTES 

 
1. Consideration and approval of minutes of the New Braunfels Housing Authority 

Board of Commissioners meeting of October 17, 2024. 
 

E. INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

1. Considertaion and approval of resolution to approve Payables Report fourth (4) 
Quarter 2024 payables. 

2. Consideration and approval of resolution to approve the New Braunfels Housing 
Authority's 2023-2024 Fiscal Year End Financial Reports 

3. Consideration and approval of resolution to approve 2025 Utility Allowance 
Schedule 

4. Consideration and approvalof a resolution  to enter into Lease Option Agreement 
with New Villa Serena Phase I, LLC (HRI Communities) 

5. Consideration and approvalof a resolution  to enter into Partnership with the Park 
Development Group, LLC - “Park at Dogwood” 

F. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 

1. Tenant Account Receivables 
2. Boiler Assessment 

    
G. ADJOURNMENT.  

NOTE: Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids 
or services such as interpreters for persons who are deaf or hearing impaired, readers, or large 
print, are requested to contact the NBHA’s Administrative Office at 830.625.6909 x202 at least 
two (2) workdays prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 5 of 60 
 

 
D. DRAFT MINUTES 

 
The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, met 
in a Regular Session, on October 18, 2024, at 5:15 pm. 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:                           COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Commissioner Justin Botter 
Commissioner Cinderella Brown 
Commissioner Sarah Dixon 
Commissioner Raymond Marquez 
Chairperson Sharon Samples 
                           
                                                               
STAFF: 
Henry Alvarez, Executive Director 
Irene Cantu, Administrative Assistant 
Mickey Lloyd, Programs Manager 
Stacy Howard, Administrative Assistant 
Isabel Lee , MBA 
Doug Poneck, Esquire 
Jeff Darby, Senior Council 
Nathan Brown, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
Ms. Samples called the meeting to order at 5:20 p.m. 
 
 ROLL CALL 
Mrs. Cantu called roll. A quorum was present. 
 
 Public Hearing   
Hearing to receive comments on the PHA 2024-2028 Five-Year Plan. 
 
No public comment. 
 
 Citizens’ Communication 
Three (3) citizens were heard. 
 
 MINUTES 
 
Discussed and approved the minutes of the Regular Board of Commissioners meeting of 
of July 18, 2024 
 
Commissioner Marquez motioned to accept the minutes. Commissioner Dixon seconded 
the motion which passed unanimously. 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 6 of 60 
 

 
 
INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION: 
 

1. Discussion and resolution to approve the PHA 2024-2028 Five-Year Plan  
for the New Braunfels Housing Authority. 

 
Isabel provided the item. Henry spoke on the item. 
Commissioner Marquez moved to approve the item. Commissioner Dixon seconded which 
passed unanimously. 
 

2. Discussion and resolution to approve the Second Quarter (Q2) Payables 
 

Isabel provided the reports.  
Commissioner Marquez moved to approve the item. Commissioner Dixon seconded which 
passed unanimously. 
 

3. Discussion and resolution to approve the New Braunfels Housing Authority’s 
2023-2024 Year to Date Financial Reports. 
 

Isabel provided the item. Commissioner Marquez moved to approve the item.  Commissioner 
Dixon seconded which passed unanimously. 

 
4. Discussion and resolution to approve New Braunfels Housing Authority Tenant 

Account Receivables Write-Off. 
 

Ms. Lee presented the item. Additionally, Executive Director Alvarez spoke on the item. 
Commissioner Marquez motioned to approve the items. Commissioner Dixon seconded the motion 
which passed unanimously. 

     
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Master Developer Update 

Executive Director Alvarez provided the updates. 
Commissioner Marquez moved to approve the update. Dixon seconded the motion which passed 
unanimously. 

                                  
EXECUTIVE SESSION-Closed Session  

 
a. Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code Section 551.071—Consultation with attorney and 
    consideration of proposal regarding Case No. C2022-1609B; Housing 
    Authority of the City of New Braunfels v. Ellis Townhomes Inc., et al. 

 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 7 of 60 
 

CONVENE INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION   
 
Convened into Executive session at 6:08 p.m.  
 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
 
Reconvened into open session at 6:08 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Cinderella Brown moved to authorize amending the NBCR legal action be 
amended to add The Heart of the Family Assistance, Inc., as a party to the existing NBCR legal 
matter as discussed during Closed-Session.  Commissioner Dixon provided a second to the 
motion.  All Commissioner were in Favor.  The motion was adopted 
. 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Without objections, the meeting was adjourned at 6:08 p.m. 
 
 

 

 

 

Attest: 

 
 
 
             
Sharon Samples, Chairperson     Date 
 

 
 
 
              
Henry Alvarez,       Date 
Executive Director               
 

 
 

 
 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 8 of 60 
 

 
E.  INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 

AGENDA ITEM E1 

 
SUBJECT: 

Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202501230001 approval of the Authority’s 
Fourth Quarter 2024 Payables. 

BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 

The payables report reflects operational expenditures for the end of the Fourth (4th) Quarter. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The payables report reflects operational costs, with contractor expenses from vendors such as 
M&M Contractor, Meyer Heating and Air, and HD Supply Facilities Maintenance, Ltd. accounting 
for a large portion of the payables. These costs primarily reflect expenditures on maintenance, 
services and make ready supplies. 
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the fourth (4th) Quarter payables.  

ATTACHMENT: 

Accounts Payable Reports – Fourth (4th) Quarter 

 

 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 9 of 60 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 10 of 60 
 

 

  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 11 of 60 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  202501230001 
 

CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF FOURTH (4RD) QUARTER PAYABLES 
REPORT.  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New 

Braunfels, Texas, a public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas 
(“NBHA”) recognizes the importance of responding to the housing and support needs of its 
residents in times of emergency or calamity; and 
 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires 
Housing Authority Boards to review and approves Authority expenditures; and  

WHEREAS, The HUD required auditors to recommend a similar Authority review of its 
operational expenditures. 

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The Board hereby accepts and approves the City of New Braunfels Housing 
Authority Board of Commissioners hereby accepts and approves the Fourth (4th) Quarter Payables 
Reports. 

Section 2.  If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, 
or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.   
 

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Board. 
 

Section 4.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 
 
 
 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 12 of 60 
 

 
CERTIFICATEFOR RESOLUTION 

The undersigned officer of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, a public 
instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas {"NBHA"} hereby certifies as 
follows:  

1. In accordance with the bylaws of NBHA, the Board of Commissioners of NBHA 
{the "Board"} held a meeting on January 23, 2025 {the "Meeting"} of the duly 
constituted officers and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum 
was present. Whereupon among other business transacted at the Meeting, a written  

APPROVAL OF FOURTH (4TH) QUARTER PAYABLES REPORT 

(the “Resolution") was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  It was 
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said 
motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed, and carried by a majority vote 
of the Board.  

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board's 
minutes of the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly 
and sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, 
and purpose of the Meeting; and the Meeting was held and conducted in accordance 
with the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of NBHA.  

 

SIGNED AND SEALED       ,2025.  

 

____________________________________ 

Henry Alvarez, Secretary/Executive Director 

 

(SEAL}  

 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 13 of 60 
 

AGENDA ITEM E2 

 
SUBJECT: 

Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202501230002 approval of the Authority’s Fiscal 
Year End (FYE) 2024 Financial Reports. 

BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 

Low Rent Public Housing: 
 
As of September 30, 2024, the Low Rent Program ("Public Housing") Operating Account had a balance of 
$32,349.73. The month’s operating revenue was $193,934, while operating expenses amounted to 
$360,441, resulting in a net loss of ($166,506). A significant portion of the expenses was due to 
Depreciation ($157,131) PILOT and Collection Losses ($34,576). Excluding these non-cash expenses, the 
program would have posted a net income of $25,201. For the year-to-date period ending September 2024, 
the Low Rent Program ("Public Housing") generated $1,501,261 in operating revenue, but incurred 
$1,724,514 in operating expenses, resulting in a net loss of ($223,253). A significant portion of the expenses 
includes Depreciation ($157,131) PILOT and Collection Losses ($107,047). Excluding these non-cash 
expenses, the program would have realized a net income of $40,925. 
 
Housing Choice Voucher (Formerly Section Eight) 
 
As of September 30, 2024, the Section 8 Operating Account holds a balance of $13,163.28. During the 
month, the program earned $287,993 in operating revenue and incurred $227,714 in operating expenses, 
resulting in a net income of $60,278. Year-to-date, the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program has 
generated $2,650,626 in revenue, with $2,672,816 in operating expenses, leading to a net operating loss of 
($22,190). However, excluding the Port-In expenses of $85,536 related to uncollected Port-In rents, the 
program would have achieved a net income of $63,346. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Overall, this reflects the financial health of the Authority. The Low Rent Public Housing program 
experienced a significant increase in operating expenses, particularly in maintenance, insurance, 
and bad debts, leading to a higher net loss compared to the previous fiscal year. In contrast, the 
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program saw a reduction in its net loss, despite the impact of 
uncollected Port-In rents when compared to the prior fiscal year. 
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year End Financial Reports.  

ATTACHMENT: 
 
2023-2024 Fiscal Year End Financial Reports 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 14 of 60 
 

Public Housing 

 
 
  
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 15 of 60 
 

Public Housing Continued 
 

 
 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 16 of 60 
 

 
Public Housing Continued 

  
 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 17 of 60 
 

HCV (Section 8) 

  
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 18 of 60 
 

HCV (Section 8) Continued 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 19 of 60 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  202501230002 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NBHA 2023-2024 FISCAL YEAR END FINANCIAL 
REPORTS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New 
Braunfels, Texas, a public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas 
(“NBHA”) recognizes the importance of responding to the housing and support needs of its 
residents in times of emergency or calamity; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners believes it serves the public interest and is in the 

best interest of NBHA to accept the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year End Financial Reports; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to approve and accept the 2023-2024 

FiscalYear End Financial Reports;  
 
 

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  The Board hereby accepts and approves the NBHA 2022-2023 Fiscal Year End 
Financial Reports;  
 

Section 2.  If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, 
or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.   
 

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Board. 
 

Section 4.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 20 of 60 
 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 
 

The undersigned officer of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, a 
public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas (“NBHA”) hereby certifies 
as follows: 

 
            1.           In accordance with the bylaws of NBHA, the Board of Commissioners of NBHA 
(the “Board”) held a meeting on January 23, 2025 (the “Meeting”) of the duly constituted officers 
and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present.  Whereupon among 
other business transacted at the Meeting, a written 

 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NBHA 2023-2024 YEAR TO DATE FINANCIAL 
REPORTS 
 
(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  It was 
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said 
motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed, and carried by a majority vote 
of the Board. 
 

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of 
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified 
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the 
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws 
of NBHA. 

 
 
SIGNED AND SEALED __________, 2025. 
 
 

  
Henry Alvarez, Secretary/Executive Director 
 
 

(SEAL) 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 21 of 60 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM E3 

              
SUBJECT: 
 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202501230003 authorizing the 2025 utility allowance 
schedule for Tenant Furnished utilities and other services for the Authority's Affordable Housing Programs.  
 
BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 
 
The New Braunfels Housing Authority (NBHA) is required to conduct an annual assessment of the utility 
allowance (UA) schedule for the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program tenant furnished (i.e., tenant-
paid) utilities and other services in an effort to determine if there have been any utility rate changes of 10% 
or more. Those services/allowances include, but are not limited to, the following: electric, gas, water, sewer, 
and trash. Cable and telephone services are not part of the utility allowance schedule. Other considerations 
such as tenant-or landlord-provided appliances and type of heating and cooling systems in a particular unit 
are also included in this schedule.  
 
The proposed utility allowance schedule was prepared by the Nelrod Company for electric, gas, water, 
sewer, and trash for each unit type and bedroom size. The values provided were developed using 
engineering methodologies set forth by the HUD Utility Allowance Guidebook along with other currently 
accepted engineering design and consumption standards for runtimes, equipment sizing, and specific 
climate zones.  
 

Villa Serena 2BR 3BR 4BR 

  2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 

Electricity $47.00 $45.00 $53.00 $51.00 $58.00 $56.00 

Natural Gas $66.00 $72.00 $71.00 $78.00 $75.00 $83.00 

Water $32.00 $31.00 $48.00 $46.00 $69.00 $66.00 

Sewer $72.00 $65.00 $89.00 $80.00 $106.00 $96.00 

Trash Collection $19.00 $19.00 $19.00 $19.00 $19.00 $19.00 
Totals $236.00 $232.00 $280.00 $274.00 $327.00 $320.00 

Difference 1.7% 2.2% 2.2% 
       

 

Laurel Plaza 0BR 1BR  
 

  2024 2023 2024 2023 
  

Electricity $76.00 $72.00 $76.00 $72.00 
  

Totals $76.00 $72.00 $76.00 $72.00 
  

Difference 5.5% 5.5% 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 22 of 60 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Generally, increased Utility Allowances reduce program participants rent portions. Reduced participant rent 
portions are offset by increased housing subsidies provided by the Authority. These expenses are offset by 
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) increased subsidies.  
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 
 
The utility allowance analysis confirmed that utility rates did not increase or decrease by 10% or more. As 
a result, no changes are necessary. Staff recommends maintaining the current utility allowances and 
carrying them forward to 2025. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

Utility Allowance Schedule 2024  

Utility Allowance Schedule 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 23 of 60 
 

 
Utility Alllowance Analyis for 2024 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 24 of 60 
 

 
Utility Allowance Analysis of 2024   
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 25 of 60 
 

 
Utility Allowance Analysis of 2024 Cont’d. 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 26 of 60 
 

 
Utility Allowance Analysis of 2024 Cont’d using. 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 27 of 60 
 

Utility Allowance Analysis for 2023 

 

  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 28 of 60 
 

 
Utility Allowance Analysis 2023 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 29 of 60 
 

 
Utility Allowance Analysis 2023 Cont’d 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 30 of 60 
 

 
Allowance Analysis 2023 Cont’d 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 31 of 60 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 202501230003 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE UTILITY ALLOWANCES FOR THE NEW 
BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY (NBHA) HOUSING PROGRAMS.  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New 
Braunfels, Texas, a public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas 
(“NBHA”) recognizes the importance of responding to the housing and support needs of its 
residents in times of emergency or calamity; and 
 

WHEREAS, Federal Regulations require housing authorities to review utility allowance 
schedule(s) annually and adjust the schedule(s) if there has been a 10% or more rate change per 
category since the last revision; and  

WHEREAS, Residential Utility Allowances, a Division of the Nelrod Company completed 
the utility allowance review for the Low Rent Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher 
Programs and as required by HUD regulations 24 CFR 982.517, a comparison was made of the 
utility rates utilized in the previous study compared to the current utility rates; and  

WHEREAS, the utility allowance review indicated that utility providers' rates have not 
changed more than 10%, therefore, staff recommends continuing to use the 2024 Utility Allowance 
Schedule in 2025 Exhibit 1; and  

WHEREAS, Federal Regulations require the use of the revised utility allowance schedules 
at the next annual reexamination; and  

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels will use the revised utility 
allowance schedules for new families assisted under the Housing Choice Voucher Program and 
current participants with reexaminations effective January 1, 2021 or later.  

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS, THAT: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners believes it serves the public interest and is in the 
best interest of NBHA to accept the Utility Allowances; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to approve and accept the Utility 

Allowance. 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 32 of 60 
 

 
 

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  The Board hereby accepts and approves the 2024 NBHA UTILITY 
ALLOWANCES FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2025.  
 

Section 2.  If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, 
or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.   
 

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Board. 
 

Section 4.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 
  



 

 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 
 

The undersigned officer of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, a 
public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas (“NBHA”) hereby certifies 
as follows: 

 
            1.           In accordance with the bylaws of NBHA, the Board of Commissioners of NBHA 
(the “Board”) held a meeting on January 23, 2025 (the “Meeting”) of the duly constituted officers 
and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present.  Whereupon among 
other business transacted at the Meeting, a written 

 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REVISED UTILITY ALLOWANCES FOR THE 
NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY (NBHA) HOUSING PROGRAMS. 
 
(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  It was 
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said 
motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed, and carried by a majority vote 
of the Board. 
 

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of 
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified 
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the 
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws 
of NBHA. 

 
 
SIGNED AND SEALED __________, 2025. 
 
 

  
Henry Alvarez, Secretary/Executive Director 
 
 

(SEAL) 
  



 

 

AGENDA ITEM E4 
 

SUBJECT: 

Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202501230004 approval of the Authority to enter 
into a Lease Option Agreement with New Villa Serena Phase I, LLC (HRI Communities). 

BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 

The Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) Low Income Housing Tax 
Credit (LITHC) Application Process, requires that the applicant have “site control” of the proposed 
development   Typically, a Lease Option Agrement serves the puropose of demonstrating site 
control. 

The Lease Option has provisions for a 99 year lease, an option fee of $10,00, and annual base rent 
of $10,000 beginning on the first day of the second lease year.   These elements will be subordinate 
to debt servide obligations. The Lease Option Agreement is necessary to complete the LIHTC 
application.  However, if the Lessee is not successful in securing the LIHTC, then the option will 
be revisited.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Revenue projections of $10,000 per annum. 
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Lease Option Agreement with the New Villa Serena Phase I, LLC (HRI 
Communities). 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

Exhibit  - Lease Option Agreement 

  



 

 

LEASE OPTION AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE OPTION AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made by and between NEW BRAUNFELS 
HOUSING AUTHORITY, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (“Lessor”), and NEW VILLA SERENA 
PHASE I, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“Lessee”), who, in consideration of the agreements herein 
contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, agree as follows: 

A. Lessor (or a public facility corporation sponsored by Lessor pursuant to Texas Local 
Government Code, Chapter 303) and Lessee will enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding (herein so called) related to the rehabilitation, construction, development 
and operation of an approximately 75-unit multifamily affordable housing development 
(the “Project”) to be located upon the Property (hereinafter defined). 

B. An affiliate of Lessor will be a member and the sole manager of the Managing Member of 
the Lessee along with an affiliate of HRI Communities, LLC. 

C. Lessee intends to apply for low income housing tax credits (the “Tax Credits”) allocated 
by the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (“TDHCA”) in order to 
partially finance the Project. 

D. Lessor is the owner of record of the Property (hereinafter defined); and 

E. In order to facilitate Lessee’s application for the Tax Credits, Lessor and Lessee desire to 
enter into this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 1. 
 

LEASE OPTION 

Subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement, Lessor hereby grants to Lessee, and Lessee 
hereby accepts from Lessor, an irrevocable and exclusive option (the “Option”) during the Option Period 
(hereinafter defined) to enter into a ground lease (the “Ground Lease”) with Lessor for that certain real 
property more fully described on Exhibit A attached hereto, in the City of New Braunfels, Comal County, 
Texas, and as described under Exhibit A attached hereto, together with all rights and appurtenances 
thereon or in anywise appertaining thereto (collectively, the “Property”) for the sole purpose of financing, 
constructing and operation of an approximately 75-unit multifamily affordable housing project that will 
be financed in part with the Tax Credits, and owned by the Lessee with an affiliate of Lessor as a member 
and the sole manager of the Managing Member of the Lessee. 

ARTICLE 2. 
 

OPTION PAYMENT 

 Within ten (10) days from the Effective Date (hereinafter defined), Lessee shall pay Lessor, the 
sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) (the “Option Payment”).  Such Option Payment is (i) in 
consideration of Lessor granting Lessee the Option to lease the Property, and (ii) non-refundable and non-
applicable to the Initial Lease Payment (hereinafter defined). 



 

 

ARTICLE 3. 
 

OPTION PERIOD AND INVESTIGATION BY LESSEE 

3.1 Option Period.  Lessee shall have a period commencing on the Effective Date (hereinafter 
defined) and expiring on December 31, 2025 (the “Option Period”) to physically inspect the Property and 
otherwise determine the feasibility of the Project and whether it will enter into such Ground Lease for the 
Property in its sole discretion. 

3.2 Exercise of Option.  If, on or before the expiration of the Option period, (i) Lessee receives 
notice from TDHCA that the Project is being awarded the Tax Credits and (ii) Lessee, in its sole discretion, 
determines the Property is acceptable and elects to exercise the Option, then after occurrence of both (i) 
and (ii) Lessee shall give written notice of Lessee’s exercise of the Option to Lessor within the Option 
Period.  Upon Lessor’s timely receipt of written notice of Lessee’s exercise of the Option, Lessor and Lessee 
shall enter into a mutually acceptable Ground Lease, which shall substantially include (in addition to any 
and all other terms so agreed to by the parties) the terms and conditions set forth in Article 3 hereof and 
which shall be subject to the approval of Lessee’s investor and/or Lender.  The Ground Lease shall be 
executed on the closing of debt and equity financing for the Project, which shall occur on or before 
December 31, 2026.  Lessee acknowledges and understands that the Lessor’s ability to enter into the 
Ground Lease is conditioned upon approval of the transaction by the US Department of Housing and 
Urban Development and Lessor shall incur no liability hereunder if such approval is not obtained by 
Lessee.  

If Lessee does not give written notice of its exercise of the Option to Lessor, the Option granted 
by this Agreement shall automatically terminate and be null, void, and of no further force or effect, except 
for the provisions of this Agreement which expressly survive termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4. 
 

GROUND LEASE TERMS 

Ground Lease Term: 99 years 

NNN Lease: Lessor will lease the Property on an Absolute NNN basis. 

Rent: The Annual Base Rent shall begin to accrue and shall be payable as provided 
below.  Together, the Annual Base Rent is referred to herein as the “Rent”.  
Rent shall be subordinate to the debt service obligations on the Project but 
shall resume after any foreclosure and sale. 

Annual Rent Start 
Date: 

The earlier of (i) the date that is eighteen (18) months after Closing or (ii) the 
date Partnership receives a certificate of occupancy on the Project from the 
City of New Braunfels. 

Lease Year: The term “Lease Year” as used in the ground lease means the twelve (12) 
consecutive calendar months during the Term beginning on the Annual Rent 
Start Date. 



 

 

Annual Base Rent: Before the Annual Rent Start Date, no Rent is payable to Lessor.  Starting on 
the Annual Rent Start Date and continuing through the end of the Term, 
Partnership shall pay to Lessor the Annual Base Rent for the corresponding 
Lease Year, in equal monthly installments.  For the first (1st) Lease Year, the 
Annual Base Rent shall be not less than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000).  
Beginning on the first (1st) day of the second (2nd) Lease Year, and the first (1st) 
day of each Lease Year thereafter, the Annual Base Rent will automatically 
increase from that of the prior Lease Year by three percent (3.00%), by 
multiplying the prior Lease Year’s Annual Base Rent by 1.03; provided, however 
that Annual Base Rent shall be re-negotiated every fifteen (15) years 
throughout the term based on market conditions.   

Ownership of 
Improvements: 

Lessee will own the improvements on the Project and will be responsible for 
the cost of the same.  Upon termination of the Ground Lease, ownership of the 
improvements and fixtures constituting the Project shall revert to Lessor, 
subject to foreclosure requirements of any lenders for the Project.   

4.3 Reversion.  Upon expiration of the term of the Ground Lease, ownership of the 
improvements and fixtures constituting the Project shall revert back to the Lessor, subject to foreclosure 
requirements of any lenders of the Project. 

ARTICLE 5. 

LESSOR REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

The Lessor represents and warrants to Lessee as of the Effective Date (hereinafter defined) that: 

(a) no party has been granted any license, lease or other right relating to the use or 
possession of the Property; and 

(b) there are no contracts or other obligations outstanding for the sale, exchange or transfer 
of the Property or any portion thereof.  There is no agreement of sale or option or right of first refusal or 
right of first offer or similar agreement with respect to the Property giving any party a right to purchase 
all or any interest in the Property, except for this Agreement. Lessor agrees to work in good faith to obtain 
any required governmental approvals necessary for the Project, but makes no representations or 
warranties that it will be able to obtain such approvals. 

ARTICLE 6. 
 

INTERIM RESPONSIBILITIES OF LESSOR 

Lessor agrees that during the Option Period: 

(a) Lessor will enter into no agreement with respect to the leasing, use, operation, 
maintenance, or purchase and sale of any portion of the Property without the prior written consent of 
Lessee;  

(b) Lessor will, at no cost to Lessor, cooperate with and assist Lessee in connection with any 
investigations that Lessee reasonably deems necessary to determine the feasibility of the construction of 



 

 

the Lessee’s proposed multi-family development, such cooperation will include, without being limited to, 
the signing of all documents necessary or instant to the processing of such applications and attendance 
at whatever meetings may be required in order that Lessee may receive approval of such applications; 

(c) Lessor will not further encumber or permit encumbrance of the Property in any manner;  

(d) Lessor will notify Lessee of any action, notice or correspondence that affects the 
availability of exemption of the Property from ad valorem taxation; and 

(e) Lessor shall not, and shall not permit any other person or entity, to solicit, negotiate or 
enter into any agreement with any other person or entity with respect to the development, investment,  
construction, and management of the Project or any other similar improvements upon the Property 
without prior written consent of Lessee. 

Lessor acknowledges that irreparable harm would result from any breach by Lessor of the 
provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to the Option set forth hereunder.  Accordingly, in 
the event of any breach of these covenants by Lessor, in addition to all other remedies at law or in equity 
possessed by Lessee, Lessee shall be permitted to seek specific performance and injunctive relief in favor 
of Lessee without the necessity of Lessee posting a bond.  No remedy provided under this Agreement or 
any other document related thereto is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every 
remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to any and every other remedy so provided under this 
Agreement or any other document related thereto, and those provided by law or in equity. 

ARTICLE 7. 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

7.1 Lessee’s Liability.  LESSEE AGREES TO INDEMNIFY LESSOR OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY AGAINST, 
ANY LIABILITY, OBLIGATION OR EXPENSE OF LESSOR OR RELATING TO THE PROPERTY THAT IS DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY CAUSED 
BY ANY ACTION OF LESSEE IN CONNECTION HEREWITH. 

7.2 Notices.  All notices, demands, requests and other communications required or permitted 
hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be deemed to be delivered when actually received, or, if earlier 
and regardless of whether actually received (except where receipt is specified in this Agreement), upon 
the later of (i) email transmission to the addressee at the email address set forth below, receipt of which 
is confirmed (and if receipt is not confirmed, then a copy thereof shall be delivered to an overnight delivery 
courier for delivery the following day), or (ii) deposit in a regularly maintained receptacle for the United 
States mail, registered or certified, postage fully prepaid, addressed to the addressee at its address set 
forth below, or at such other address or email as such party may have specified theretofore by notice 
delivered in accordance with this Article 7.2 and actually received by the addressee: 

If to Lessor: New Braunfels Housing Authority 
Attn:  Executive Director 
300 Laurel Lane  
New Braunfels, Texas 78130 
 

If to Lessee: New Villa Serena Phase I, LLC 
c/o New Villa Serena Phase I Manager, LLC 
c/o HRI New Villa Serena Phase I, LLC 



 

 

Attn:  President and CEO 
812 Gravier St. Suite 200 
New Orleans, Louisiana 70112 
 

7.3 Governing Law; Venue.  The laws of the State of where the Property is located shall govern 
the validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Agreement. 

7.4 Integration; Modification; Waiver.  Excluding the Memorandum of Understanding 
between Lessor and Lessee or any other documents related thereto, this Agreement constitutes the 
complete and final expression of the agreement of the parties relating to the Property, and supersedes all 
previous contracts, agreements, and understandings of the parties, either oral or written, relating to the 
Property.  This Agreement cannot be modified, or any of the terms hereof waived, except by an instrument 
in writing (referring specifically to this Agreement) executed by the party against whom enforcement of 
the modification or waiver is sought. 

7.5 Counterpart Execution and Electronic Delivery.  This Agreement may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be fully effective as an original and all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument.  Signed copies of this executed Agreement may be delivered 
electronically, and such copies shall be deemed to be originals. 

7.6 Headings; Construction.  The headings which have been used throughout this Agreement 
have been inserted for convenience of reference only and do not constitute matter to be construed in 
interpreting this Agreement.  Words of any gender used in this Agreement shall be held and construed to 
include any other gender and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, and vice 
versa, unless the context requires otherwise.  The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder” and other 
similar compounds of the words “here” when used in this Agreement shall refer to the entire Agreement 
and not to any particular provision or section.  If the last day of any time period stated herein shall fall on 
a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the City or County in which the Property is located, then the duration 
of such time period shall be extended so that it shall end on the next succeeding day which is not a 
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. 

7.7 Invalid Provisions.  If any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement, or the 
applicability of any such provision to a specific situation, shall be held invalid or unenforceable, such 
provision shall be modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it or its application valid and 
enforceable, and the validity and enforceability of all other provisions of this Agreement and all other 
applications of any such provision shall not be affected thereby. 

7.8 Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Lessor 
and Lessee, and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns. Lessor may 
convey the Property to a public facility corporation that Lessor is the sponsor of and assign its rights 
hereunder to such public facility corporation. Lessee may not assign its interest hereunder. Except as 
expressly provided herein, nothing in this Agreement is intended to confer on any person, other than the 
parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns, any rights or 
remedies under or by reason of this Agreement. 

7.9 Exhibits.  All references to Exhibits contained herein are references to Exhibits attached 
hereto, all of which are made a part hereof for all purposes the same as if set forth herein verbatim, it 
being expressly understood that if any Exhibit attached hereto which is to be executed and delivered at 



 

 

Closing contains blanks, the same shall be completed correctly and in accordance with the terms and 
provisions contained herein and as contemplated herein prior to or at the time of execution and delivery 
thereof. 

7.10 Effective Date.  The date of formation of this Agreement (herein called the “Effective 
Date”) shall for all purposes be the date of the signature of the last to sign of the parties hereto, provided 
the fully-executed Agreement is delivered to both parties within one (1) business day thereafter. 

7.11 Modifications and Waivers.  This Agreement cannot be changed nor can any provision of 
this Agreement, or any right or remedy of any party, be waived orally.  Changes and waivers can only be 
made in writing, and the change or waiver must be signed by the party against whom the change or waiver 
is sought to be enforced.  Any waiver of any provision of this Agreement, or any right or remedy, given on 
any one or more occasions shall not be deemed a waiver with respect to any other occasion. 

   
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.  Signature Page Follows.] 



 

 

LESSOR: 
 
NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY,  
a political subdivision of the State of Texas 
 
 
By:       
Name (Print):      
Title:       
Date:       

 
 

     LESSEE: 

     NEW VILLA SERENA PHASE I, LLC,  
A Texas limited liability company 
 
By: NEW VILLA SERENA PHASE I MANAGER, LLC,  

A Texas limited liability company, its manager 
 
By: HRI NEW VILLA SERENA PHASE I, LLC,  

A Texas limited liability company, its manager 
 

 
By:       
Name (Print):      
Title:       
Date:       
 

  



 

 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 

VILLA SERENA, BLOCK 1, LOT 1 

  



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 202501230004 APPROVING AND RATIFYING THE 
NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A LEASE OPTION AGREEMENT FOR THE 
VILLA SERENA APARTMENTS TRANSACTION; AND OTHER MATTERS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH 

WHEREAS, the New Braunfels Housing Authority (the “Authority”) was created to address the 
need for creation and preservation of safe and sanitary housing at affordable prices for persons of 
low and moderate income who are residents of the City of New Braunfels (the “City”); 

WHEREAS, a to-be-formed affiliate of the Authority and HRI Communities (the “User”), are 
contemplating an Application for financing (the “Application”), requesting that the Authority or 
an affiliate thereof participate in the acquisition, rehabilitation, construction, and equipping of a 
proposed 85-unit multifamily housing facility to be located at the intersection of S Seguin Road 
and Rosa Parks Drive, New Braunfels, Texas and to be known as the Villa Serena Apartments (the 
“Project”); 

WHEREAS, the User intends to finance the Project in part with 9% housing tax credits (the “Tax 
Credits”) competitively procured from the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
(“TDHCA”) and one or more loans;  

WHEREAS, the members of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority (collectively, the 
“Board”) previously passed a Resolution inducing the Project and indicating the Authority’s 
preliminary, non-binding commitment, subject to the terms of such Resolution, to proceed; 

WHEREAS, the Authority currently owns the property on which the Project will be located and 
has granted to the User an exclusive option to lease such property (the “Lease Option”) so that the 
User could submit its application to TDHCA for the Tax Credits;  

WHEREAS, the member of the Board and their respective offices are as follows: 

 Name of Director/Officer   Position 
 Sharon Navarre Samples   Chairperson/Commissioner 
 Sarah Dixon     Vice-Chairperson/Commissioner 
 Justin Botter     Commissioner 
 Cinderella Brown    Commissioner  
 Raymond Marquez    Commissioner 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the public interest and to the benefit of the 
citizens and residents of New Braunfels for the various entities to enter into the transactions 
described above so that the User may construct the Project and desires to approve and ratify the 
negotiation and execution of the Lease Option in order to facilitate such transactions; and 

WHEREAS, this Board has reviewed the foregoing and determined that the action herein 
authorized is in furtherance of the public purposes of the Authority; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE NEW BRAUNFELS 
HOUSING AUTHORITY THAT: 



 

 

Section 1. The negotiation and execution of the Lease Option are hereby approved and 
ratified. 

Section 2. The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Executive Director, or any 
Commissioner of the Board are authorized to take any and all action necessary to carry out and 
consummate the transactions described in or contemplated by the documents approved hereby or 
otherwise to give effect to the actions authorized hereby and the intent hereof. 

Section 3. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the Board. 

Section 4. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the Board 
hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

Section 6. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 

 
* * * 

  



 

 

VILLA SERENA APARTMENTS 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 

The undersigned officer of the New Braunfels Housing Authority (the “Authority”) hereby 
certifies as follows: 

1. In accordance with the bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners of 
the Authority (the “Board”) held a meeting on January __, 2025 (the “Meeting”), of the duly 
constituted officers and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present.  
Whereupon among other business transacted at the Meeting, a written 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 202501230004 APPROVING AND RATIFYING THE 
NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A LEASE OPTION AGREEMENT FOR 
THE VILLA SERENA APARTMENTS TRANSACTION; AND OTHER 
MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  
It was then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due 
discussion, said motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and 
carried by a majority vote of the Board. 

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of 
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified 
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the 
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the 
Bylaws of the Authority. 

 
SIGNED AND SEALED January __, 2025. 

 
        
Henry Alvarez 
Executive Director 

 

  



 

 

AGENDA ITEM E5 
 
SUBJECT: 

Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202501230005 approval of the Authority to enter 
into a Development Partnership with Parkwood Development Group, LLC (Developer) – “Park at 
Dogwood”. 

BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 
 
The Park Development Group, LLC has requested the participation of the New Braunfels Housing 
Authority (NBHA) to create a development partnership to develop eighty five (85) affordable housing units 
commonly called the “Park at Dogwood”.  The developer has proposed terms (Exhibit A) that reflects the 
affordability of all units at sixty percent(60%) are below the area medium income (AMI).  Additionally, the 
Developer has proposed  that NBHA’s financial participation be a ratio of twenty percent (20%) and the 
Developers participation ratio be at eighty percent (80%), for development fees, sales tax savings, and cash 
flow participation.  Moreover, the Developer request that the NBHA ability to purchase the completed 
development at the end of the compliance period be at the Fair Market Value provided by an independent 
appraisor.  NBHA cannot look favorably in providing a zero dollar property and sales tax exemption given 
the level of affordabiltity the Developer is offering. 
 
NBHA’s goals are to provide affordable housing in perpertuity.  Generally, Low Income Housing Tax 
Credit development offer participation ratios that are typically thirty percent (30%) of development fees, 
twenty-five percent (25%) in cash flow and sales tax savings, and that the completed facility be purchase 
at the “Minimum Purchase Price” defined in the Internal Revenue Code  Section 42(i)(7) – The remaining 
debt plus any exit taxes.   
 
NBHA believes this scenario is counter to it’s goals to provide affordable housing in perpetuity.  In fact, 
such a scenario may likely result in a purchase price too great for NBHA to activate an option to purchase, 
or to effectively acquire the property after the conplianc period, or to maintain it’s affordability if the 
property moves exponentially to market value at the end of the affordability term.  Staff, as a result of this 
reasoning, strongly encourages your Board not to agree or exectute a Partnership Agreement with the 
Developer’s proposed terms. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The long term affordability of the Partnership is questionable given the current proposed terms of the 
Partnership.  It is NBHA goal to continue the developments affordability in perpertuity. 
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends your Board NOT approve this Development Proposal 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

Exhibit A - Developer’s List of Terms (with strike out) 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

LIST OF TERMS 
BETWEEN 

NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 
AND 

PARK DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 
“PARK AT DOGWOOD” 

This List of Terms is between New Braunfels Housing Authority (“NBHA”), a Texas public 
housing authority, and Park Development Group, LLC (“Developer”), a Mississippi Limited Liability 
Company, and is dated effective as of ______________, 2025. 

Developer is a developer of affordable housing in the State of Texas.  NBHA is a public 
housing authority whose mission, in part, is to provide safe, decent and sanitary housing for low-
income persons. Developer and NBHA hereby agree to work cooperatively to develop affordable 
housing in accordance with the terms of this List of Terms. 
In order to accomplish this purpose, the parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENTS: 
Project Details 

Project Name: Park at Dogwood 

Address: 0 Old McQueeney Rd, New Braunfels, TX 78130 

Total Number of Units: 85 

AMI mix: 9 units at 30% AMI, 34 units at 50% AMI, 42 units at 60% AMI 

 
Ownership/Development Details 

Owner: Comal Partners, L.P. 

General Partner: NBHA [___________] GP, LLC 

Sole Member of GP at Closing/  
CO-Developer: 
 

NBHA or a PFC sponsored by NBHA 

Developer Partner (Class B or SLP): Park at Dogwood, LLC 

Developer: Park Development Group, LLC 

ILP (Investor Limited Partner): TBD 

Guarantor(s): Park Development Group, LLC, Mark B. Willson, R. McKie 
Edmonson, Byron G. Burkhalter 

Contractor: [NBHA or, in the case of HUD financing, a JV between NBHA and 
Subcontractor] 

Subcontractor: TBD 

Property Manager: United Apartment Group 

 
Fee Schedule Details  

Paid Developer Fee: TBD – based on final model and agreed upon in the LPA with the ILP. 



 

 

2030% NBHA12 
8070% Developer 
 

Sales Tax Savings: 2025% NBHA 
8075% Owner 
 

[JV Contractor/Subcontractor] Fee: The not to exceed amount payable shall be inclusive of a typical 6-2-
6 construction profit (i.e., 6% builder profit, 2% overhead and 6% 
general conditions) and will include a contractor’s contingency of 5% 
solely for the use of Contractor or Partnership.  

Management Fee: Not to exceed 6% 

Owner Cash Flow/Refinancing & Sale 
Proceeds Split: 

To be set forth in the LPA or a Master Agreement; After fees and any 
priority distributions agreed upon by the partners, ILP to receive a set 
percentage of not to exceed 10%, and NBHA and Developer Partner 
shall split the remainder 2050%/8050% 

PILOT Payment: 
 
 

. It is understood that there will be a 100% property tax exemption 
with no property tax or PILOT payments.  

 

 

  

 
1 This fee split assumes NBHA receiving a Right of First Refusal at the Fair Market Value to bet set forth by an 
Independent Appraisal “Minimum Purchase Price” as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 42(i)(7), to be 
exercised at the end of the initial compliance period.  
2  



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  202501230005 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING  THE NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 
PARTNERSHIP WITH THE PARKWOOD DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New 
Braunfels, Texas, a public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas 
(“NBHA”) recognizes the importance of responding to the housing and support needs of its 
residents in times of emergency or calamity; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners believes it serves the public interest and is in the 

best interest of NBHA to accept the approval of the New Braunfels Housing Authority Partnership 
with the Parkwood Development Group, LLC.; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to approve and to accept the 

Development List of Terms by the Parkwood Development   
 
 

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  The Board hereby does accept and does approves the New Braunfels Housing 
Authority entering into an partnership with the Parkwood Development Group. 
 

Section 2.  If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, 
or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.   
 

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Board. 
 

Section 4.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 
  



 

Page 50 of 60 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 
 

The undersigned officer of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, a 
public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas (“NBHA”) hereby certifies 
as follows: 

 
            1.           In accordance with the bylaws of NBHA, the Board of Commissioners of NBHA 
(the “Board”) held a meeting on January 23, 2025 (the “Meeting”) of the duly constituted officers 
and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present.  Whereupon among 
other business transacted at the Meeting, a written 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 
PARTNERSHIP WITH THE PARKWOOD DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC  

 
(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  It was 
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said 
motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed, and carried by a majority vote 
of the Board. 
 

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of 
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified 
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the 
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws 
of NBHA. 

 
 
SIGNED AND SEALED __________, 2024. 
 
 

  
Henry Alvarez, Secretary/Executive Director 
 
 

(SEAL)  



 

Page 51 of 60 

 
D.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 

1. Tenanat Account Receivables 
 

ATTACHMENT: - HUD Notice: Notification of Excessive Tenant Accounts Receivables 

2. Boiler Assessment 

 



 

Page 52 of 60 



 

Page 53 of 60 



 

Page 54 of 60 



 

Page 55 of 60 



 

Page 56 of 60 



 

Page 57 of 60 



 

Page 58 of 60 

 
 
  



 

Page 58 of 59 

 



 

Page 60 of 60 

E. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT CONTD. 
 

3. Boiler Condition 
 
Primary Boiler Original Boiler (Now Backup) 2 0f 3 Typical Pumps 

Primary Holding Tank Solar Holding Tanks 4th Floor Additional Solar Tanks 

 
 
 

 
F. ADJOURNMENT.  


